
CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
Regular Meeting of the City Council 

City Hall 
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue 

 
AGENDA 

August 10, 2016 at 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER:   
 
B.   ROLL CALL:   LINDSTROM ___ HARRIS ____ BROWN THUNDER ___ 
    FISCHER ___ GUSTAFSON___  
     
 STAFF PRESENT:  THONGVANH____   
 
 
C. PRESENTATIONS: 

 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   

1. July 8, 2016 Special City Council Meeting Minutes  
2. July 13, 2016 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
F. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. General Disbursements through: 8/04/16   $321,406.38 
Payroll through: 7/31/16   $41,759.90 

2. Approval of City License(s) 
 
G:  POLICY ITEMS:  

1. Assistant Emergency Manager Compensation 
2. Approve the Removal of Garden Ave from the 2017 PMP Feasibility Report 
3. Acknowledge Withholding Funds for Alley Repairs on 2013 PMP  

 
H. INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
I. COMMUNITY FORUM: 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 
 
 



BLANK PAGE 



1 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
Special Meeting 

City Hall 
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue 

MINUTES 
July 8, 2016 at 12:30 P.M. 

A. CALL TO ORDER:  12:34 pm 
 

B.   ROLL CALL:   LINDSTROM _X__ HARRIS __X__ BROWN THUNDER _X__ 
    FISCHER _X__ GUSTAFSON_X__  

 STAFF PRESENT:  THONGVANH_X___ KNUTSON__X__ 

C.  PRESENTATIONS: 

D.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

E.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

F.  CONSENT AGENDA: 

G.  POLICY ITEMS:  
1. Addressing the Purchasing Authority of the City Administrator  
Administrator Thongvanh stated that his request is to increase his purchasing authority 
in the event of an emergency from $5,000 to $50,000. This increase of $50,000 total would 
be in place if a quick decision had to be made to move forward. This limit would be per 
purchase. The council proposes an end date to the purchasing authority for the end of 
the year. If needed, this could be extended.  

Council Member Harris Moves, Approved 5-0 
 

2. Considering Public Affairs Consultation 
Mayor Lindstrom is making the recommendation that we look into a Public Affairs 
Consultant. This is uncharted waters for the City, and the City needs assistance to help 
with guidance and responses to the public. One of the suggestions on the table is to have 
representation from Blois Olson with Fluence Media. He has worked nationally for more 
than 2 decades. His philosophy is transparency and tenacity in transparency. He’s 
represented many clients (i.e. school districts, police departments, etc.) and has 
significant crisis experience. Of the five to six national/international stories he’s 
consulted on, he has played a role as an adviser. He believes there are several pieces of 
the puzzle, and he has the personal and professional capacity to work with a city of this 
size.  

Page 1 of 41



2 | P a g e  
 

Council Member Harris stated that we need to make certain that the city continues to 
function and provide the resources and services that we have been offering. Our role is 
very narrow, and we need to stick to our role. We are one piece of the puzzle.  
Administrator Thongvanh stated that the consultant would be in an advisory capacity to 
the city.  The approval is for Administrator Thongvanh to determine and hire a public 
affairs consultant. 
 

Council Member Fischer Moved, Approved 5-0 

H.  INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

I.  COMMUNITY FORUM: 

J.  ADJOURNEMENT: 1:02 pm 

_____________________________ 

                                                                                                              Peter Lindstrom, Mayor  

Dated this 8th day of July, 2016 

 

__________________________________ 

Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

 

Page 2 of 41



1 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
Regular Meeting of the City Council 

City Hall 
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue 

 
MINUTES 

July 13, 2016 at 7:00 P.M. 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER:  7:03 pm 
 
B.   ROLL CALL:   LINDSTROM _X__ HARRIS __X__ BROWN THUNDER _X__ 
    FISCHER _X__ GUSTAFSON_X__  
     
 STAFF PRESENT:  THONGVANH__X__   
 
C. PRESENTATIONS: 

 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   

1. June 22, 2016 City Council Meeting Minutes    Approved  
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
F. CONSENT AGENDA:        

1. General Disbursements through: 7/05/16   $134,033.63 
          Payroll through:  6/30/16   $21,217.48 

2. Approval of City License(s) 
3. Accepting MPCA Sponsorship  Grant 
4. Accepting the 2015 Year End Audit-Falcon Heights Fire Relief Association  

 
Council Member Harris Moved, Approved 5-0 

 
G:  POLICY ITEMS:  

1. City of Lauderdale Fire Contract 
City Administrator Thongvanh stated that there are four key components in the 
Lauderdale Fire Contract: the capital share for the newest fire truck, readiness to serve, 
fire inspections, and fire protection. The City of Lauderdale equates to about 30% of the 
total calls. The revenues fluctuate from year to year because the readiness to serve 
calculation is based on total market value of the City of Lauderdale and a multiplier. 
One of the future goals is to make revenue sources more stable. The goal is to get 
consensus from the Council to authorize the City Administrator to move forward in 
reviewing the contract. There is an inflation variable in the other contracts to create 
stability.  

 
Council Member Gustafson Moved, Approved 5-0 

Page 3 of 41



2 | P a g e  
 

 
 
H. INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
Council Member Fischer: 
This has been a tragedy. He has received a number of messages from residents that are both sad 
and angry. The conversation is broader than our city and should be broader than policing. We 
need to do the hard work of building broader and more inclusive communities. This is bigger 
than a police problem, but speaks to how we treat people who are different than ourselves. We 
need to know, befriend, and care about people who are different than ourselves. We need to 
speak out, and open our ears and hearts.  
 
Council Member Harris: 
She has been a lawyer practicing in labor law. She has a heart for the issue of discrimination, but 
in her position as a Council Member she believes it’s important to be cautious about any 
statements that are made. Over ten years as a council member she has never received negative 
feedback on St. Anthony PD. She trusts the independent investigation to present the facts and to 
see what the St. Anthony PD suggests for next steps.  
 
Council Member Brown Thunder: 
This event has been a tragedy for everyone involved. This event is not representational of 
Falcon Heights. He echoes the comments from his fellow colleagues, and he pledges to listen 
and move forward with the facts.  
 
Council Member Gustafson: 
He agrees with his colleagues. We need to continue a peaceful exchange while we allow the 
professional outside investigation to follow its course so that we can learn the facts.  
 
Mayor Lindstrom: 
He echoes what the Council Members have said. This has been the ultimate tragedy for our 
small city. In this process we should not rush to make any quick decisions in terms of 
immediate changes to policies, procedures or contracts. The council will look at those things but 
that is to be determined in weeks ahead.  
 
City Administrator Sack Thongvanh: 
He also wants to echo what has been said by the Council Members. This has been a trying time 
and staff is there to do their job, listen, and take feedback. 
 
I. COMMUNITY FORUM: 
 
Sarah Chambers- 2170 Folwell Falcon Heights: 
She gives her condolences. She identifies with Obama’s words to forge consensus, fight 
cynicism, and find the will to make change. There must be oversight of law enforcement and 
study of best practices. We need statistics on who is being stopped. We need feedback from not 
only residents and SAPD, but surrounding cities and persons affected.  
 
 

Page 4 of 41



3 | P a g e  
 

 
Kristine Miller- 1640 Victoria St. N St. Paul: 
She wants to make the neighborhood safe for everyone. How can we ensure that police are 
ready to constantly check their subconscious racism every day?  
 
Joan Dao-2025 Fairview Roseville, MN: 
Silence is not an option. If this is the first time the Council is hearing about racism, police stops, 
traffic stops, or the fear of police, you are not listening to your citizens and their stories. How 
are you reaching out to people who are different than you and making a conscious effort to 
learn about them and their culture? 
 
Philip Sellew- 1588 Vincent St. Falcon Heights: 
The City Council acts as a civilian oversight board. We have no contractual right to oversee our 
police, and he finds that unacceptable.  
 
Steven Carpenter- 1871 Larpenteur Falcon Heights: 
What concrete steps had the City or Council taken in the last week? Why did we rotate out 
police forces? Based on hiring a public relations person, it looks like the top priority is how this 
appears.  
 
Mayor Lindstrom- Response: 
This is the first Council Meeting since the event aside from the Special Meeting. The Special 
Meeting took place to authorize the City Administrator to hire a public relations person, and the 
Council has opted to not hire a public relations person.  
 
Tom McNinch- 1508 Iowa Ave. W Falcon Heights: 
He experienced an encounter with the police as they were stopping at his neighbor’s house. 
They asked him if he would go inside, and he feels he made a mistake for not watching. He 
urges the Council to think about whether or not the police failed to live up to the standards of 
the community.  
 
Melissa Stone- 1656 Garden Ave. Falcon Heights: 
She concurs with what others have said. She urges the council to take the energy that has been 
generated from this event, and think about a way to continue that engagement. What do we 
want in terms of public safety? What are our goals? What makes sense for Falcon Heights?  
 
Dave Bishop- 1765 St. Mary’s St. Falcon Heights: 
He has been a resident for 33 years. He stated that he doesn’t see this as a racial issue. He has 
been stopped three times in the city limits, and his two sons have been stopped in the city limits 
as well. All have been asked to take breathalyzers. He says that we are a catalyst to do 
something different, and figure out a different way to interact with those who are keeping us 
secure. He says to find volunteers nationally or locally, and appoint a committee. Have these 
volunteers address how to create a new relationship with suburban police. 
 
Josie Griffin- Minneapolis Resident and UMN St. Paul student: 
It is completely routine for an African American man to be stopped on Larpenteur. This impacts 
the Evolution Department of the University of Minnesota’s recommendation to potential 

Page 5 of 41



4 | P a g e  
 

students. There is a need to inform prospective black students that they run the risk of being 
harassed right outside of the school.  
 
Chuck Laszewski- 1713 St. Mary’s St. Falcon Heights: 
He says the Council should take action that’s definitive. The Council should begin to take steps 
to ending the contract by 2017. This one act has permanently left a bad name for Falcon Heights. 
As a business man, if a vendor did something terribly wrong, the contract should be cut. If this 
is not happening immediately, an RFP should be in place for when the investigation is 
completed in order to begin the process of terminating the contract.  
 
Charles Johnson- 1718 Lindig St. Falcon Heights: 
He thinks this is a problem that requires action. We should be able to write a contract that will 
stop the harassment. Larpenteur and Snelling are known as the area to be stopped and frisked. 
We don’t need law enforcement, we need peace officers.  
 
Melissa Stessel- 1795 Fry St. Falcon Heights: 
She wants to thank her neighbors for speaking up. She has been horrified by what has occurred, 
and then the silence. She wants the Council Members to add their voices. We don’t have to 
solve things internationally or nationally. We have international attention, and that’s an 
opportunity.  
 
Katie Mercer-Taylor- 2231 Folwell Ave. Falcon Heights:  
She wants to express care and condolences. She shares the sentiments as many that have 
already spoken. This racist policing has been done in her name, and that’s not ok. 
Neighborhoods Organizing for Change has an open letter from the board on their website. They 
state, “For too many in our community, our current law enforcement system simply does not 
keep us safe…We must envision, build, and publically fund radical alternatives to community 
safety. “  
 
Rebecca Montgomery- 2222 Folwell Ave. Falcon Heights:  
She has been a resident for 10 years and she serves on the Environment Commission. She’s 
asking that we take action. We need to use this event as a way to examine how we do business 
in this city. Examining the policing and the contract, and reforming the way the policing 
happens. Being an example, leader, and symbol of how things we can do differently. We need 
to act to change the system that has inherent bias.  
 
Bruce Mielke- 1868 Arona St. Falcon Heights: 
He would love to see something at the Ice Cream Social, at least a table or an event in regards to 
what is being heard. 
 
Christine Baeumler- 1871 Larpenteur Ave. Falcon Heights: 
She is heartbroken and angry. What she is not hearing tonight is a sense of urgency. She teaches 
in the Art Department at the UMN. She invites community members and international students 
to her home. She has asked people to take risks to visit her community. She would like to hear 
some stronger acknowledgement of action. We need to take a stronger stand and be clear about 
the concrete steps that we are going to take on the procedures to policing the community.  
 

Page 6 of 41



5 | P a g e  
 

Mayor’s Response: 
He is deeply upset and hurt about the event that has taken place, and he’s not ok with it. We 
need to look closely at how we are doing police operations. This is not a call for anything 
immediate right now. We need to know about the breakdown of arrests, citations, who is being 
pulled over, who is being frisked, and to look at 21st century policing. He thinks we would be 
best served if we had a diverse group of people that look at where we’re at and how we can 
improve.  
 
J. ADJOURNMENT: 8:12 pm 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                                                      Peter Lindstrom, Mayor  
Dated this 13th day of July, 2016 
 
__________________________________ 
Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 
 

Page 7 of 41



BLANK PAGE 

Page 8 of 41



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item General Disbursements and Payroll 

Description 
 

General Disbursements through: 8/04/16:  $321,406.38* 
Payroll through: 6/30/16:  $41,759.90** 
 
*Higher than usual because of a TIF Distribution for Falcon Town Square 
**Includes two payroll period 

Budget Impact The general disbursements and payroll are consistent with the budget.  

Attachment(s) • General Disbursements and Payroll  

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council approve general 
disbursements and payroll. 

 
 

Meeting Date August 10, 2016 
Agenda Item Consent F1  

Attachment General Disbursements and Payroll 
Submitted By Roland Olson, Finance Director 

Page 9 of 41



BLANK PAGE 

Page 10 of 41



Page 11 of 41



Page 12 of 41



Page 13 of 41



Page 14 of 41



Page 15 of 41



Page 16 of 41



Page 17 of 41



Page 18 of 41



Page 19 of 41



Page 20 of 41



Page 21 of 41



Page 22 of 41



Page 23 of 41



Page 24 of 41



Page 25 of 41



Page 26 of 41



Page 27 of 41



Page 28 of 41



Page 29 of 41



Page 30 of 41



        REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

      The City That Soars! 

Item Approval of City License(s) 

Description The following individuals have applied for a Municipal Business License for 2016. 
Staff has received the necessary documents for licensure.  

1. Eighty Eight Notes School of Music
Budget Impact N/A 

Attachment(s) N/A 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council approve the 2016 City 
License Application. 

Meeting Date August 10, 2016 
Agenda Item Consent F2 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Tim Sandvik, Deputy Clerk 

Page 31 of 41



BLANK PAGE 

Page 32 of 41



        REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

      The City That Soars! 

Item Deputy Emergency Manager’s Compensation 

Description In 2005, Dan Johnson-Powers was appointed as Deputy Emergency Manager along 
with the Public Works Director Greg Hoag at the time.  The two agreed to serve in 
the shared role of Deputy Emergency Manager as part of their regular staff duties 
with the City.  The minutes of the meeting stated that in an event of an emergency, 
they will be compensated for their time, per City Policy.   

The difference between Mr. Hoag and Mr. Johnson-Powers is that M. Hoag was a 
full time exempt employee and Mr. Johnson-Powers was a Volunteer Firefighter.  
Mr. Johnson-Powers stated that because of this unique situation, the City agreed 
that he would be compensated his “regular job” pay.  The reasoning behind that 
arrangement is because his regular job is an emergency manager for a company.   

Budget Impact    This has not been budgeted for 2016.  The City of St. Anthony has agreed to 
reimburse the City for all cost related to the recent events.   

Attachment(s) • Council Meeting Minutes for March 9, 2005

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff would recommend approval to compensate Dan Johnson-Powers at $46/hour 
for duties related and assigned to emergency management by the City 
Administrator/Emergency Manager.     

Meeting Date  August 10, 2016 
Agenda Item Policy G1 

Attachment Minutes from March 9,2005 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

Page 33 of 41



BLANK PAGE 

Page 34 of 41



FALCON HEIGHTS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES -5-
March 9, 2005 

Authorization for staff to solicit bids for the purchase of a fire pumper (continued) 

Council member Kuettel asked about combining the bid with bids the State of Minnesota 
or Saint Paul might be doing for fire equipment.  Administrator Worthington said the State  
doesn’t purchase fire trucks.  Fire Chief Kurhajetz said Saint Paul isn’t purchasing any pumpers 
this year.   

Mayor Gehrz asked Fire Chief Kurhajetz to describe the current pumper for the viewing 
audience.  Fire Chief Kurhajetz said it is a 1978 LaFrance that was built in New York and 
purchased new for $65,000.  Members of the Fire Department went out to New York to drive it 
back.  The Department rebuilt the transmission in 1991, but it is hard to find replacement parts 
for it anymore.         

Talbot moved authorization for staff to solicit bids for the purchase of a fire pumper.  The motion 
was unanimously approved. 

Appointment of Dan Johnson-Powers and Greg Hoag as Deputy Emergency Managers 

Administrator Worthington said that by City Council direction, the City Administrator serves as 
the City’s Emergency Management Director.  It is prudent to appoint two staff members to serve 
as deputy emergency managers in the event that the City Administrator is not present for an 
emergency, or is incapacitated and cannot serve in that function.   

Greg Hoag is the City’s Public Works Director, and also serves as a Fire Captain with the 
Roseville Fire Department.  He brings 15 years of experience in first response as a firefighter, 
and has considerable emergency management skills.  He also brings expertise about public works 
functions and their role in emergency response.  Dan Johnson-Powers is a Fire Captain with the 
Falcon Heights Fire Department, is the City’s primary CERT trainer, and is pursuing 
certification in emergency management through the State of Minnesota.  He has assisted the City 
in planning and executing emergency drills and exercises, and serves as a liaison to county and 
state agencies that are interested in CERT planning.  These two have agreed to serve in this role 
as part of their regular staff duties with the City.  In the event of an emergency, they will be 
compensated for their time, per City policy. 

Kuettel moved approval of the appointment of Greg Hoag and Dan Johnson-Powers as Deputy 
Emergency Managers for the City of Falcon Heights.  The motion was unanimously approved. 

Step increase and title change for Greg Hoag, Director of Public Works 

Administrator Worthington said that Greg Hoag has completed his six-month employment 
probation with the City, and has had excellent performance during this period.   

Page 35 of 41

sack.thongvanh
Highlight



BLANK PAGE 

Page 36 of 41



        REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

      The City That Soars! 

Item Approve the Removal of Garden Ave from the 2017 Pavement Management Project 
Feasibility Report 

Description City Staff is proposing to a remove Garden Ave from the 2017 Pavement 
Management Project Feasibility Report. Removing Garden Ave will allow staff and 
Council to have more discussion about the existing roadway alignment and further 
investigate possible pedestrian improvements to the corridor.  

Based on the City’s pavement management project schedule 2019 would be the 
earliest road construction on Garden Ave could happen.  

Budget Impact None. 

Attachment(s) 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Approve the Removal of Garden Ave from the 2017 Pavement Management Project 
Feasibility Report 

Meeting Date August 10, 2016 
Agenda Item Policy G2 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Jesse Freihammer, City Engineer 

Page 37 of 41



BLANK PAGE 

Page 38 of 41



        REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

      The City That Soars! 

Item Acknowledge withholding funds for alley repairs on 2013 PMP 

Description The alley between Larpenteur Avenue and Crawford Avenue, from Snelling Avenue to 
Arona Street (“Falcon Crossing” alley) was constructed as part of the 2013 Pavement 
Management Project. Staff has been retaining $5,000 on the contract due to some surface 
defects on the alley created by a vehicle driving on the surface to early. The contractor had 
suggested to diamond grind the alley to correct these defects. After reviewing the 
proposal, staff believes this solution would create as many problems as it would solve, 
particularly with drainage. Staff proposes to keep the $5,000 in lieu of the diamond 
grinding. The contractor has agreed to this.  

Budget 
Impact 

No additional payment will be made on this contract. 

Attachment • Site Map

Action(s) 
Requested 

Acknowledge withholding funds for alley repairs on 2013 PMP in lieu of repair. 

Meeting Date August 10, 2016 
Agenda Item Policy G3 

Attachment Site Map 
Submitted By Jesse Freihammer, Civil Engineer 

Page 39 of 41



BLANK PAGE 

Page 40 of 41



Page 41 of 41

sack.thongvanh
Rectangle

sack.thongvanh
Callout
Project-Alley


	1 - CCAgenda_8-10-16
	D1 - CCMIN Special Meeting_Jul 8, 2016
	D2 - CCMIN_13 July
	F1 - RCA_Payables
	F1(2) - Payables
	F3 - RCA_Approval of City License(s)
	G1 - RCA_Assistant Emergency Manager's Compensation
	G1(2) - CC Meeting Minutes_3-09-05
	G2 - RCA_Approve the Removal of Garden Ave from the 2017 PMP Feasibility Study
	G3 - RCA Acknowledge Withholding Funds for Alley Repairs on 2013 PMP
	G3(2) - Site Map



